
Licensing Panel (Premises) 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the virtual meeting of the Licensing Panel (Premises) to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 18 May 2020

TIME: 10.30 am

VENUE: Online meeting (MS Teams) via the link below

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. This meeting will be live-streamed and available to view on-line.

THE MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED VIA THE LINK BELOW:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_ZTNlODViM2UtM2E1OC00NWVhLTk1M2UtM2E
5ZDc3MmE2MDZi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2
268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2211b92587-2ccd-43bf-
a58e-
1c84a3b4ee72%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Introductions and Procedures 

2  Licensing Act 2003 

To consider an application for a review of the premises licence for:

Pendleton Off Licence, 
154 Fitzwarren Street, 
Salford, 
M6 5RS.

(Pages 1 - 82)

Contact Officer: Tel 
No:

0161 793 3316

Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic 
Services Advisor

E-Mail: Decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003
REVIEW HEARING Monday 18th May 2020

at 10:30am 

Pendleton Off Licence
154 Fitzwarren Street

Salford M6 5RS

Panel Report  & Protocol Appendix 1 PUBLIC

Application for Review Appendix 2 PUBLIC

The following documents contain personal information and are exempt from publication under the 
following paragraphs of Schedule 12A of The Local Government Act 1972:

1 - Information relating to any individual 

3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information

Witness Statement from V Hardman Appendix 3 PRIVATE

Exhibit VH/9443/001-005 Appendix 4 PRIVATE

Exhibit VH/9443/006 Appendix 5 PRIVATE
Representation from Trading Standards

Premises Licence Appendix 6 PRIVATE

Appellant Bundle Appendix 7 PRIVATE

Trading Standards Response to Appellant Bundle Appendix 8 PRIVATE

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1 ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLACE DIRECTORATE TO THE 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE.
TO THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE ON MONDAY 18TH MAY 2020 AT 
10:30AM

TITLE: Application for review made under the Licensing Act 
2003.

RECOMMENDATIONS: 1. Members are asked to make a decision in 
accordance with the protocol served on the parties.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
An application for review was received by the 
Licensing Section on the 23/03/2020 for Pendleton 
Off Licence, 154 Fitzwarren Street, Salford, M6 
5RS. The application was submitted by Greater 
Manchester Police.

BACKGROUND 
DOCUMENTS (Available 
for public inspection)

Application forms.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK Not Applicable.

SOURCE OF FUNDING Licence Fee

LEGAL ADVICE 
OBTAINED

FINANCIAL ADVICE 
OBTAINED

Not Applicable

Page 3



CONTACT OFFICER Tim Cook

WARD (S) TO WHICH 
REPORT RELATES

Langworthy

KEY COUNCIL 
POLICIES

Salford City Council Licensing Policy.

DETAILS (Continued 
Over)

BACKGROUND

This is an application for a review of the existing premise licence for Pendleton Off Licence, 154 
Fitzwarren Street, Salford, M6 5RS.   This application was received on 23/03/2020 from Greater 
Manchester Police. The review was submitted as the shop was found to be breaching immigration 
law. It refers to the following licensing objectives:

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

During the 28 day representation period a representation has been received from Salford City Council 
Trading Standards.  The application for the review and associated documents are attached to this 
report.

The review documents were served on the premises licence holder and designated premises 
supervisor Mrs Naghmana Ashraf, 78 Gilnow Road, Bolton BL1 4LJ.  

On 02/04/2020 applications to transfer the premises licence and vary the designation premises 
supervisor were received by the Licensing Office, from Mr Ali Hassan Ashraf, 4 Briksdal Way, Bolton 
BL6 4PG. Both applications were granted.  Mr Ashraf was made aware of the pending review 
application and has been provided with the review documents. 

This application will be considered on its own merits.

When dealing with this application Members will also take into account the licensing policy of Salford 
City Council and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport.

Members are requested to make a decision on the matter and take whatever steps they consider 
necessary.

Page 4



LICENSING ACT 2003 PROTOCOL TO BE FOLLOWED IN HEARINGS

All hearings will be conducted in public by a Licensing Sub-Committee, unless it is necessary to sit in 
private.

Each application will be considered on its merits, taking the following factors into account
 The four licensing objectives, namely

o Prevention of crime and disorder
o Public safety
o Prevention of public nuisance
o Protection of children from harm

 The policy of the licensing authority
 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport

The proposed procedure will be as follows

 The Chair will introduce the members and officers present, identify the applicant and 
responsible authorities and interested parties who have submitted representations and explain 
the purpose of the hearing together with the procedure to be followed.

 The Chair will seek confirmation that the application is complete.

 The Chair will indicate, if appropriate, that the members of the sub-committee have read the 
papers and that the parties do not need to repeat their written submissions, unless to clarify 
specific points notified to them by the Authority.

 The Chair will invite the applicant to address the hearing.

 Members may ask questions of the applicant.

 Other parties may ask questions of the applicant if appropriate.

 The Chair will invite the responsible authorities to present their representations.

 Members may ask questions of the responsible authorities.

 Other parties may ask questions of the responsible authorities if appropriate.

 The Chair will invite the interested parties to present their representations. Where a large 
number of similar written representations have been received, the Chair may request that the 
parties nominate a spokesperson on their behalf.

 Members may ask questions of the interested parties.

 Other parties may ask questions of the interested parties if appropriate.

 The Chair will invite the applicant and all other parties to summarise their points if they wish to.Page 5



 The legal adviser to the Sub-Committee will advise on any points of law.

 The Sub-Committee will make a decision upon the application.

 If the Sub-Committee is minded to grant the licence subject to conditions of a specific nature, it 
may ask the parties to draft such conditions. Comments will then be invited upon the proposed 
conditions.

 Once the Sub-Committee has made its determination, confirmation of its decision, including full 
reasons for the decision, will be provided to the parties wthin five working days of the hearing.

Please note

 Late representations and evidence will only be accepted with the agreement of all parties 
present.

 All parties will be allowed a reasonable and equal amount of time to present their case as 
determined by the Chair.

 If the hearing is for a review, the premises licence holder will become a separate party entitled 
to present his/her case and question other parties as appropriate. Where the review follows a 
closure order, it is likely that the Police will be treated as the applicant for procedural purposes.

 Cross-examination will not normally be permitted unless the sub-committee considers that it 
would be necessary in the circumstances of the case.

 The Sub-Committee may exclude any parties from the hearing who are behaving in a 
disruptive manner.

 The Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing to a further specified date if it considers such 
action necessary, giving its reasons for doing so.

Page 6



           Application for the review of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Pc 8743 Krys Urbaniak Greater Manchester Police
  (Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the 
review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 
for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details  
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description
PENDLETON OFF LICENCE, 154 FITZWARREN STREET

Post town   SALFORD Post code (if known)  M6 5RS 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)
Ms Naghmana ASHRAF

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 
35225

Part 2 - Applicant details 
I am 

Please tick yes
 1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 
premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

Page 7



2

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below)

   

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick
Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title      

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names
          

Please tick yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal 
address if 
different from 
premises 
address

     

Post town      Post Code      

Daytime contact telephone number      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

     

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address
     

Telephone number (if any)
     
E-mail address (optional) 
     

Page 8



3

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address
Greater Manchester Police,
Swinton Police Station,
Chorley Rd, 
Swinton,
Manchester M27 6BA

Telephone number (if any)
     
E-mail address (optional) 
     
 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)
Greater Manchester Police believe that the current Premises Licence Holder and 
DPS has not upheld the licesing objectives of the Operating schedule - specifically 
prevention of crime and disorder of the Licence.- GMP believe that the DPS is not in 
proper control of the premises and that the day to day operation is controlled 
byGULFRAZ RAHMAN who identifies as the owner of the premise. GMP has 
eveidence that GULFRAZ RAHMAN  has attempted to with-hold CCTV evidence 
therefore attempting to Obstruct IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS in their investigation or even attempting to pervert the 
course of justice.GMP have evidence from IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT TEAM that  GULFRAZ RAHMAN has Lied to Immigration 
Officersand has employed Mr X who has no right to work or undertake work which is 
proof of poor management and company practice  a criminal offence andas stated in 
the sec 11.27 & 11.28 of the Sec 182 Guidance of the licensing Act 2003 as 'to be 
treated as particuiarly serious' and ' it is expected that the revocation of the licence - 
even in the first instance - should be seriously considered' 

Page 9



4

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application 
(please read guidance note 2)

On Thursday16th JANUARY 2020 at 13:36 hrs The Immigration and Enforcement 
Team executed a warrant issued under Paragraph 17(2) Schedule 2 of the 
Immigration Act 1971 at Pendleton OFF LICENCE, 154 Fitzwarren Street, Salford M6 
5RS following information from Trading Standards that a male now known to be Mr 
X, a male national of PAKISTAN born XX-XX-XXXX was working at the premises 
illegally. Checks on Home Office systems revealed that Mr X has overstayed his 
period of granted leave and has no right to work or reside in the UK.
Mr X was arrested by Officers. He initially denied working there and stated that he 
had only been there for 10 minutes while the manager went out.
GULFRAZ RAHMAN was identified as the owner/manager of the shop and was 
spoken to over the phone, where he identified himself as the owner,  RAHMAN 
immediately started lying to officers  denying  that Mr X worked at the premises, 
despite previous visits conducted by Trading Standards who witnessed Mr X working 
at the shop and Officers witnessing him serving customers moments before 
executing the warrant.. RAHMAN was asked for the CCTV password to enable 
Officers to ascertain if he was telling the truth, he continued to attempt to deceive 
officers by claiming that he did not know the password – it wasn’t until he was told 
the whole system would have to be seized and this would impact on whether the 
shop could still operate – that he remembered the password.  
The following  CCTV footage was downloaded and still images were obtained 
showing Mr X working at the premises numerous times over a number of weeks
Exhibit ref VH/9443/001   -  01/01/2020 09:32 Mr X behind counter
Exhibit ref VH/9443/002  -  01/01/2020 Mr X taking stock from the counter to the 
shelves
Exhibit ref VH/9443/003  -  04/12/2019 14:20 Mr X behind the counter during a visit 
from Salford Council (Licensing and Trading Standards)
Exhibit ref VH/9443/004  -  16/01/2020 13:16 Mr X tidying products on shelves
Exhibit ref VH/9443/005  -  16/01/2020 08:14 Mr X looking at paperwork behind 
counter
On 16th January 2020 Mr X was interviewed and denied working at the shop. The 
interview and Photographs used are shown in exhibit ref VH/9443/006 
Photo 1 - work check list found in subjects pocket.
Photo 2 - subject the only person in shop. He was stood behind the counter serving 
customers when immigration officers conducted the visit.

Photo 3 - trading standards paperwork from their visit in December 2019 where 
subject signed it as he was the only one working here.

On 11TH MARCH 2020 The Civil Penalties Team made the decision to issue a civil 
penalty of £10,000 in relation to Mr X having no right to work or undertake the work in 
question

Attached to this review is a statement provided by Immigration Officer VIVIENNE 
HARDMAN outlining The action taken by the Immigration and Enforcement Team .

It is our belief that the DPS and Premises Licence Holder Ms Naghmana ASHRAF 
has nothing to do with the day to day running of the business and that GULFRAZ 
RAHMAN has control over this business

GULFRAZ RAHMAN Not only employed an illegal worker he continually lied and 
attempted to mislead Officers conducting their investigation and has showed he 
cannot be trusted to up hold any of the Licensing conditions.
 

Page 10



5

This particular episode is proof of poor management and company practice  a 
criminal offence under the Immigration Act 1971 has been committed, and as stated 
in the sec 11.27 & 11.28 of the Sec 182 Guidance of the licensing Act 2003 as 'to be 
treated as particularly serious' and ' it is expected that the revocation of the licence - 
even in the first instance - should be seriously considered'

Page 11



6

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before

If yes please state the date of that application
Day Month Year
        

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state 
what they were and when you made them
     

Page 12



7

Please tick yes
 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity.

Signature     
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Date                  
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Capacity           
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)
     

Post town
     

Post Code
     

Telephone number (if any)       
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)      

Notes for Guidance 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available.
3. The application form must be signed.
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Licensing Act 2003
	APX 1 Panel report - Pendleton Off licence
	APX 2 Application for Review-Pendleton Off Licence redacted
	APX 3 Witness Statement - V.Hardman
	APX 4 Exhibits VH9443001-005
	APX 5 Exhibit VH-9443-006
	APX 5 Rep from TS - Pendleton Off Licence
	APX 6 Premises Licence-Pendleton Off Licence
	APX 7 Appellant Bundle
	APX 8 - TS Response to Appellant Submission


